
Recreation Advisory Board Meeting 
August 13, 2012 
 
Members Present 
Ashley Arrington 
Mildred Nance-Carson 
Josh O'Conner 
Wayne Wheeler 
Barry Mundt 
John Parrish 
Hutch Kerns 
 
Council Present 
Cecil Bothwell 
 
Staff Present 
Roderick Simmons, Director 
Debbie Ivester, Assistant Director 
Abigail Riley, Special Projects Coordinator 
Amy Rickman, Recreation Superintendent 
Frank McGowan, Business Services Superintendent 
Al Kopf, Parks, Planning & Development Superintendent 
 
Wayne called the meeting to order at 12:30pm 
 
Approval of July Minutes 
 
Josh moved to approve the July minutes; it was seconded by Mildred. All voted in favor; and the 
motion passed unanimously. 
 
Dr. Wesley Grant, Sr. Southside Center Design and Update 
Debbie presented an update on the progress and background of the Dr. Wesley Grant, Sr. 
Southside Center. She also sought an endorsement from the Board on the concept design. In 
2005, the City started a plan to renovate the Reid Center but decided the renovation costs would 
be too high with very little change in the building. The City decided to invest money, instead, in 
a new center in 2008, and Council voted to move forward with construction of a new center. The 
Reid Center was purchased by the Asheville Housing Authority for a vocational center.  
 
The concept design of the Dr. Wesley Grant, Sr. Southside Center shows that the complex will 
be built in three phases. The first phase of construction is the Cultural Phase to include the spray 
ground and playgrounds. The second, Physical Phase, includes the gymnasium. The community 
phase has not been designed yet in order to gather information from the community. Opened in 
October 2011 with the auditorium, three classrooms, parking lot, mechanical room (to support 
the spray ground), etc., the Cultural Phase cost approximately $1.9 million. The final step in the 
Cultural phase is the construction of the spray ground, playground, and a trail as part of the 
Town Branch Greenway. Staff is creating a funding strategy for this construction, and many 



funders require Board support. Debbie asked the Board for their endorsement to support the 
design. Staff expects the next round of work to cost approximately $1.3 million. It is currently 
staff's task to raise approximately $800,000. The Department will be applying and asking for 
$450,000 from the North Carolina Parks and Recreation Trust Fund (NC PARTF), which is due 
in January. Debbie added that staff had considered applying for the NC PARTF grant in 2010, 
but it had been determined that there was not enough cash-in-hand, and NC PARTF staff 
recommended that the Department wait to apply at a later date. 
 
The Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) and the Eckerd Family Foundation are two 
more sources of funding identified by the Department. The Asheville Parks and Greenways 
Foundation has pledged $50,000. As the project moves forward, Debbie states that the 
construction drawings are a priority for the City, and a $300,000 budget is proposed in the 2013-
2014 capital improvement budget which City Council will consider in spring 2013. 
 
The construction documents for the spray ground are complete. The design of the greenway trail 
will be completed through the Planning Department through a Housing and Urban Development 
(HUD) grant. The playground design will be completed by the landscape architects within the 
Department. The entire cost of the spray ground will be close to $800,000. It is the hope of staff 
to get enough funding to build the entire spray ground at one time. If necessary, it can be built in 
phases. It is designed to have both playground elements and water features to create a variety of 
play experiences.  
 
Wayne asked if the building and parking lot of the Center cost $1.9 million. Wayne comments 
that he does not understand why the cost of the spray ground is close to the cost of the building. 
 
Mildred asked how long the prices presented would be valid. Roderick said the numbers 
presented are cost projections, not a price. There is no guarantee on final costs until is put out for 
bid. Debbie added that these projections are goals to work towards when obtaining funding. 
Roderick said an independent pricing agency sets the price based on the current market values 
for construction. 
 
Hutch asked if it is a high priority for capital projects. Debbie said yes. The Department’s master 
plan identifies it as the highest priority capital project for the Department and one of the City's 
top capital projects. The Dr. Wesley Grant, Sr. Southside Center is the number one priority for a 
public facility project in that neighborhood. 
 
Hutch wanted to know the future of the Walton Street Pool. He asked if the spray ground would 
be a replacement for the pool. Roderick said that the City will not close the Walton Street pool. 
The Department is aware of the many mechanical problems with the pool, and staff knows that it 
will fail in the future. There will need to be an alternative to the pool in that neighborhood when 
it does fail. Roderick assured the members that the discussion of the Walton Street pool will 
continue in the future. 
 
Hutch asked if it the spray ground is big enough to accommodate many users. Roderick and Al 
said that those numbers had been considered, and expansion could be accommodated in the 
future if it is needed. Al added that for each spray ground, there is also a playground which 



doubles the play area.  
 
Barry asked what is currently in the location. Debbie said that it is an open field. The location is 
formerly the Livingstone Street Park. It had a ball field, concession building, and tennis court. 
The City owned the land for this park. That was one of the reasons building a new center was 
attractive since the city already owned the land.  
 
Ashley asked if there are parking concerns. Debbie said there is plenty of parking in the lot and 
around Livingston Street and Depot Streets. Al said staff asked for diagonal parking to increase 
the number of spaces, but planners were worried about the abundance of traffic causing safety 
issues with diagonal parking.  
 
Ashley asked if there would be a bike station to ensure multi-modal transportation. Roderick and 
Al said there would be. 
 
Cecil asked if the Housing Authority is keeping the basketball courts open at the Reid Center. 
Roderick said that it is. As part of the concept, there will be conversations regarding outdoor 
basketball courts in addition to the courts in the gymnasium. He added that Walton Street Park 
also has basketball courts available for use. 
 
Barry moved to approve the Dr. Wesley Grant, Sr. Southside Center design and concept. It was 
seconded by Hutch. All voted to approve. The motion passed unanimously. 
 
Liaison Appointment to Asheville Area Riverfront Development Commission 
Wayne said that he appointed himself to the Asheville Area Riverfront Development 
Commission. 
 
Director's Report 
 
Summer Programs 
With school starting back this week, the summer camps and programs will be winding down. 
There were no major issues this summer. Pools will be open for the next few weeks. Recreation 
Park pool will be open on the weekends through Labor Day, while the Malvern Hills and Walton 
Street pools closed on August 12th. 
 
Golf course 
Staff gave a recommendation regarding the golf course management to the Finance Committee 
in July. Roderick gave a background on the process heretofore. There was an Request for 
Proposal published in March, where eight golf course management firms applied. Three 
committees were created composed of golf course staff, mid-level managers, and the community. 
These committees looked at the makeup of the companies and created two recommendations. 
The final review committee was created and composed with staff, volunteers, and community 
members from the earlier committees. This group interviewed the two companies, and narrowed 
it down to two firms. Pope Golf was chosen as the top firm and recommended to the Finance 
Committee.  
 



Roderick said that the changing price structure of the golf course was a community concern. It 
can be built into the contract that fees stay the same. Access was another concern raised by 
community members. It will continue to be a City asset and golf course. A management 
company will not make it become a private golf course. Roderick wants to protect the golf 
course heritage, and the historical tournaments will be able to preserve their dates and times.  
 
Pope Golf was chosen because the City would not need to pay fees to the firm to cover the costs 
of management. Pope will cover the cost with its revenues. Staff wanted a management structure 
that maintained the asset while reducing the subsidy burden on taxpayers. Pope will be motivated 
to work towards creating revenue because the City will not be covering their costs. Now City 
money can be used to take care of the golf course via capital improvements and debt service.  
 
Wayne asked if Pope Golf will pay for water. Roderick said they would pay all expenses 
including water. The City will not pay for any expenses of the day-to-day operations. 
 
Barry asked if maintenance will be Pope’s responsibility. Maintenance will be the responsibility 
of Pope. The only costs to the City will be for capital improvements. Barry asked if Pope has 
standards for maintenance. Roderick answered that they have Professional Golf Association 
(PGA) standards. In addition, the Department will manage the contract to ensure that 
maintenance standards are being adhered to. Barry asked for the contract length. Pope wants a 
ten year contract, but the City wants a five year contract. It might be around seven years. 
Roderick said that it will be negotiated  
 
Wayne asked about an option to renew the contract. Roderick said that during the first year of the 
contract is when staff will be looking into that.  
 
Mildred asked if the City will be doing its due diligence within the contract time. Roderick said 
there will be an opt-out clause for both parties if Pope is not performing and meeting the 
requirements of the contract. 
 
Cecil said that there is a solid majority on City Council that is committed to providing a living 
wage. Roderick said that will be part of contract negotiations in order to follow that Council 
mandate.  
 
Josh asked what oversight the City will retain for employment. Roderick reiterated that the golf 
course staff will be employees of Pope Golf, not the City. The City will have no oversight of 
Pope’s employees. 
 
Josh said that he would like to communicate informally that staff handle the employees of the 
golf course differently than the employees of the transit system when it transitioned. Roderick 
said that Pope had a 95% retention rate of its employees. 
 
Josh asked how golf course rate approvals will work. Roderick said those terms will need to be 
worked out during negotiations. The rates will need to be flexible, and staff wants to make that a 
flexible and beneficial term for the management company, while staying in compliance with 
keeping the golf course accessible and the rates approximately the same. 



 
Ashley asked what Pope’s relationship will be with the community groups. Roderick answered 
that Pope is interested in continuing these relationships. 
 
Wayne asked if it had been approved by City Council. Roderick said that City Council will make 
the final decision, and it is scheduled to go to Council on August 28th.  
 
Ashley asked about evaluating the management company at the end of the contract. Roderick 
said that an evaluation will happen on a regular basis.  
 
Roderick added that these same conversations are beginning with the Western North Carolina 
Nature Center.  
 
Hutch asked what has been discussed about adding revenue back into the asset. Roderick said 
there will be a master plan that Pope Golf will need to agree to in order to the long-term 
improvements and track it. Hutch asked if this had been done in the past. Roderick said that it 
had. 
 
Bele Chere 
Roderick gave the members information regarding the street preachers at Bele Chere. This has 
been an issue at the festival for many years. Staff has been trying to address this every year, but 
the Department must follow legal council. 
 
Josh encouraged legal staff to look at this issue again. He stated his confusion as to why these 
street preachers are allowed to use amplification devices and harass festival goers. He asked if 
they are required to have a permit. Roderick said that the legal department answered those 
questions in the information that Roderick sent members, but he can bring members answers to 
those questions at the next meeting. Roderick said he could contact the City Attorney’s office to 
give a presentation on the issue at the next Recreation Advisory Board meeting. 
 
John said that he talked to someone while he was volunteering as roving information at the 
festival. He felt that the festival goers were more confrontational with the street preachers than in 
the past. He observed that it had been more violent this year. Roderick said that the situation has 
been about the same for the past six years. 
 
Wayne said that people from around the state, during the North Carolina Recreation and Parks 
Association Community Board Member forum came up with different suggestions including 
changing the noise ordinance, requiring permits, having a restricted area, and asking local church 
organizations to talk to the preachers. Roderick said impugning the freedom of speech can have 
grey areas and difficult to manage.  
 
Wayne suggested having regulations for the preachers. Roderick said that content can not be 
regulated. 
 
Ashley commented that even private organizations that have pulled the permits for events, must 
allow anyone the right to the permitted areas and sidewalks. She stated that the current noise 



ordinance is also an issue at keeping out the street preachers. 
 
Josh said he thinks that controls can be put in place that are content-neutral. Buskers were asked 
to be removed. He wants to see the standards to be the same for everyone. Josh asked for a copy 
of the contact information from the street preachers who sent the City information that they 
would be attending Bele Chere. 
 
Ashley commented that putting the karaoke stand by Vance Monument helped to disperse the 
street preachers. She added that volunteers were being called on social media outlets to react on 
to the street preachers. Roderick will look into it. 
 
Reports 
Bele Chere Board 
No Report 
 
Asheville Parks and Greenways Foundation 
Wayne announced that the Dancing with the Stars event is scheduled for October. Last year, the 
event raised $7,000. The money from that event will go to the spray ground at the Dr. Wesley 
Grant, Sr. Southside Center. 
 
Wayne announced that he will no longer serve at the Board liaison the Foundation, and he is 
appointing Josh to serve in that capacity 
 
Other Business 
Facility Tour 
Abigail updated the members that the date of the facility tour will be in September. She will 
provide more information via email.  
 
North Carolina Recreation and Parks Association Citizen Board Member Forum 
Wayne said that he, Josh, and Hutch attend the Citizen Board Member Forum in Greensboro 
from August 9-11, and it was about how Parks and Recreation has a financial impact on the 
community.  
 
Josh thanked staff for the opportunity to go to the conference. Hutch also thanked staff. He 
thought it was a good conference with plenty of information and good speakers. 
 
Roderick thanked Wayne for being involved in a larger role at the conference.  
 
Adjournment 
Mildred moved to adjourn the meeting. It was seconded by Barry. All approved; and the motion 
passed unanimously. 
 
 


